Sirs: My commendation for your
i of segmems of
Khrusheher Remembers (“The Terror
of Life with Stalin,” Nov. 27). Indeed,
Stalin was & man of evil genius. His acu-
men for treachery was surpassed only
by his capacity for brutaiity. The worid
rejoices in his absence.
Joun R.S. RomLio

Memgphis, Tenn.

Sirs: Dne could perhaps justify this
type of trivin if one at least received
some new insights into the *‘coloc™ of
the times or the unique personalities of
the Russian leaders. Even this is lack-
ing. | wouildn't admit to the authorship
of such drivel cither.
Geng DeROIN

Chicago, Il

Sirs: As o man who lived for nino
years ma u siave in Soviet Russis and
was sentenced 10 be shot by the Soviet

more stories like this for the American
Communists. Let them fearn what has
happened to Communists like them in
Soviet Russia.

Philsdelphia, P

Yaaxov Riz

Sirs: The story did not impress me at
all. But the photos: What a cotlection!
Communist leaders have sinister faces
and deformed bodies; they sesm (o be
degenerated specimens of the human
race. No wonder there is 4 theory that
the Communist leaders were chosen 1o
destroy civilization.
AnGEL CaNO

Richmond Hill, N.Y.

Sirs: Thad hoped you would lend your
efforts to something current and more
pressing that i taking place in Soviet
Russia. What about the Leningrad tri-
al of 33 Jews whose only erime is want-
ng 10 leave Russia?
Bess E. GursThIN

Chicago, 1L

Sirs: That Nikita Khrushchev is
emerging through his memoirs asa man
sensitive to the cruelties of social injus-
tice will surprise many Americans. We
war against o nation undoubtediy
gripped by the same doubts and fears
that ofien obscure our own view of the
poiitical philosophy of Communism.
James Lux
Columbia, Mo.

Sirs: Kheushchey calls Joseph Stalin
“‘u brutal, sick man” and blames him
for the murder of millions of peasants
during the forced collectivization era.
Pardon me. but | see no halo around Ni-

kita's head. He carried out Stalin’s or-

ders. He is just as guilty.
HaroLo Jorre
Baltimore, M,

Sirs:  ‘Whoever thought up the title
for Comrade Khrushchev's memoirs,

LETTERS TO THE EDITORS

*Khrushchev Remembers,” came up
with a winner. How could anyone with
the load he’s got an his mind ever
forget?

Cleveland, Ohio

Sirs: In dencuncing Stalin for the

1937 purges, Khrushcbev does not seem
to be awnre that there sctually was & fi-

Romert DuRBAcK

1 don't think we should shed any Khru-
shchev tears for these vicious men. They
tolerated that mass murderer, Lenin,
because they thought he was killing the
right people.

Hollywood, Calif.

Sirs: Khrushehev s wrong. Things
haven't changed that much. The Sta-
lin years aren't aver when a Lithuanian
seaman is beaten by Soviet ﬂmﬂ

A. E. van Voot

the knitted cuffs. Other boys have for-
goiten wonderful knickers are.
Can skintights run or climb or bike fast-
er than knickers? Can they jump as eas-
ily? No. Knickers are 100 good for
girls.

BiLLY JACKSON
Paoli, Pa.
Sirs: Tell me it's not true! You say
that & knickerbocker outfit of moleskin
**is moving quickly for 3400 at Jacques

be rich, but you can be that without be=
ing morally ugly on the inside.
Crris KORSGAARD

Towa City, lowa

Sirs: The U.5, weather satellite
“Portrait Pinwheel,” Nov.

taken back to “‘Communist bliss.
And s for the inaction on the part of
the U.S., remember what happened
10 Lithuania, Latvia, Estonis, East

Berlin ...
Guenne E. PENCYLA
Forest Park, Til.

Sirs: You referred o Svetlana Alliiu-
yeva as Mrs. Porter. It should be Mrs.
William Wesley Peteni.

Cass CanFiELd
New York, N.Y.

THE PRESIDENCY

Sim:  Hugh Sidey has his facts wrong
about that picture by Buck May (“Fif-
ty Years of 1 /20th of a Second,” Nov.
27) of President Coalidge saluting the
feet from & couch aboard the presiden-
tinl yacht. Coolidge did not sit down be-
cause the chore of saluting the ships at
the fieet review grew dull. The real rea-
son was that he was seasick. The pres-
jdentinl yacht had put in as near the
shore as possible so the President
wouldn't get sick. But the weather start-
ed acting up the night before the review,
and the next day the Mayfower had 2
definite roll to her. During the first hall
hour of the review, & queasy Mr. Coo-
lidge played at being the confident mar-
iner for the photographers. Then he re-
tired uft to a sofa where this picture was
taken.

Roarut STEvEN KarLan
Whitestone, N.Y.

Sirs: Knickers are still great for boys
("Knickers Sans Droop,” Nov. 271,
They are for me. I'm 12. The pockets
are bottomless and there's storage in

to prevent future calumities would be
appropriate.
Major ARTHUR AUTHIFR
USAF(RET,)
Fort Worth, Texas

Sirs: Afer reading your article on
Ethiopia concerning the wanton anni-
hilation of some of the world's scarcest
animals (*“On the Rim of the Prime-
val,” Nov, 27), | nearly died. 1t is so
very sad that man must wait until there
are fewer than 150 walia ibexes left in
their natural habitat and then still be
lax in enforcing an imperial edict. We'll
coatinue to be phlegmatic, though, be-
cause as yet only & few species are gone
forever.

Encine, Calif.

Guy Lancer

Sirs: Man kills animals for pleasure
in the U.S. and for convenience in Ethi-
opia. Perhaps one day man himself will
become rare. And when extinction
comes—who will moum?

Mns. R E. Bawwsy
Pittsburgh, Pa.

COMMENT

Sirs: 1 laughed so hard reading Cal-
vin Trillin's review of The Semvuour
Woman (*"The Adventures of Rox-
anne,” Nov, 27) that | decided to spare
my husband haviog to cope with a con-
trived Sensuous Woman. 5o 1 put the
$8.95 rowsrd some Cold Duck and hot
hars d'oeuvres. But my sver-so-knowl-

"%// § foc

edgeable husband asked me if 1 had
read the book. And 1 thaught I was be-
ing sensible, not sensuous!

Junm Cuosson
River Rouge, Mich.

SENATOR TYDINGS
Sirs: 1 am curious Lo see if Lire, after

Lynchburg, Vi

» The State Department repart, far from
repeated Live's

congressmen  approached agency
ahout the project an behalf of constit-
wents (a perfectly routine and ethical pro-
cedure), the report failed to make cieor
thot Tydings ulone had a persanal finan-
clal interest and hed, moreover, paid his
visit in company with a baxiness aso-
clate who was not even Kis constituent.
As the Livg ariicle stated, batk Tydings
anid ki associate Muason lat-
er admitted that the meeting had been
*a méstake."—ED.

CONSERVATION BILL

Sirs: In your July 19, 1968 issue you
bad an editorial entitled *'Endan,

Id have the protection s set forth
in the editorial. She prepared s bill, with
the assistance of Mr. William Lanning
of the State Legislative Services of New
Jersey, and was finally successful in hav-
ing it passed, On Nov. 5 Governor Ca-

tm%mmmmu;hu“mm—m
VICE, $4{ Norih Faicbanks CL, Chicago, TIL 50611,
duplicate copies, plesss atach both labels.) This will help us idemify you quickly

‘We are sbis 1o asswer inguiries by tziephone s many arsat, Flasse nowe your mumber herst
rra code. g

2. TO OROER A NEW SUBSCRIPTION: Check bax [ &nd use farm ¢ right for your addrms. Madl to
‘st the address given above. Subscription rate: U8, | year 510.00,

Name.

New Address.




LIFE KHRUSHCHEV REMEMBERS: PART IV

Khrushchev speaks out on Mao, Kennedy,
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Soviet Premier Ehrushchev
was joined by world Com-
munist leaders in 1961 to
salute the 44th anniversary
of the Revolution. Between
Cuba’'s Blas Rocaand Khru-

shehev is Vietnam's Ho Chi
Minh. Others, movingright
from Khrushchev: Rodion
Malinovsky, then Defense
Minister; Hungary's Janos
Kadar; Leonid Brezhnev,

Nixon and the Cuban missile crisis

who threeyearslater helped
oust Khrushchev; Central
Committee Secretary Frol
Kozlov; Party theoretician
Mikhail Suslov; Anastas
Mikuyan;NikulniShvenﬁk.




Asticlas propared for LIFE ‘We gave the bourgeois

by Gene Farmer and Jerrold Schecter

Khrushchev's favorite American
statesman was John F, Kennedy
They metat Vienna (left)in 1961
shartly after the Bay of Pigs fias-
co, and Khrushchev ser out to
intimidate the voung President.
But he was charmed by both
Kennedy and his wife (below).
and Kennedy's murder was for
Khrushchev a personal (ragedy.
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heads of state a chance to look us over’

Aware that they were being
“locked over,” Bulganin and
Khrushchey stepped on the
world stage st Geneva in 1955,
Waving from rear seat, beside
the security policeman Ivan
Serov, is Marshal Georgi K.
Zhukov, included in Soviet del-
egation because he and Presi-
dent Eisenhower were friendly.

Shaking hands at Geneva with
“that sinister man Dulles," Par-
ty Secretary Khrushchev affects
a cordiality he did not feel as
Premier Bulganin beams. Khru-
shehev suggests that the Russians
approached this meeting with a
lack of self-assurance, When it
was over, however, they felt they
had acquitted themszlves well.

Khrushchev's real education in foreign affuirs
hegan with the Big Four summit meeting in
Geneva in July 1955. He was then Party First
Secretary, although he was fwo years away
from consolidating his personel power. Geneva
was botl an ordeal and a climay for the peus-
ant who was now meéting opposite numbers
with backgrounds of Wes: Point. Eton and
Oxford, the Lycée and the Sorbonne. In
this conclusion to Lire's series. Khrushchev
seeks to justify his actions before history,
and his interpretation is clearly self-serving.

ight up until his death Stalin used to tell us, “You'll
see, when I'm gone the imperialistic powers will wring your necks
like chickens.” We never tried to reassure him that we would be
able to manage. Besides, we had doubts about Stalin’s foreign
policy. He overemphasized the importance of military might.
For him foreign policy meant keeping antiaircraft units around
Moscow on 24-hour ready alert.

Our trip to Geneva gave the bourgeois heads of state a chance
10 look us over. | think it was actually Churchill's idea 10 open
contacts with the new Soviel government after Stalin's death.
Churchill believed that the new Soviet government would be
more vulnerable to pressure. We 100 were in favor of a meeting.
It was our feeling that alter such a bloody war we and the West
could come to lerms.

I think one reason we were able to agree to the Geneva meet-
ing at all was that [Georgi] Malenkov had been released from
his duties as Chairman of the Council of Ministers. Malenkov
was unstable to the point of being dangerous because he was sus-
ceptible to the pressure and influence of others.

Prime Minister [Nikolai] Bulganin was to head our delega-
tion [the other principals: Khrushchev, Foreign Minister Vya-
cheslav Molotov and his deputy Andrei Gromykal.

We knew that the No. | goal which the English, Americans
and French would be purstiing would be what they called **the re-
unification of Germany,” which really meant the expulsion of
Socialist forces from the German Democratic Republic and the
creation of a single capitalist Germany. We wanted simply to
sign & peace treaty which would recognize the existence of two
German states and would guarantee that each state be allowed
1o develop s its own people saw fit

The leaders of the other three delegations arrived in four-en-
gine planes, and we arrived in a modest two-engine Ilyushin.
Their planes were certainly more impressive than ours, and the
comparison was embarrassing.

At the airport an unpleasant incident occurred. Bulganin was
supposed 1o step forward and inspect the honor guard. Just
before he did so, a Swiss protocol officer stepped right in
front of me and stood with his back up against my nose. My
first impulse was 1o shove him out of the way. Later | realized
he had been told to make sure that | couldn’t step forward
with Bulganin to review the troops. The Swiss government

rudely had that man stand in front of me!
CONTINUED

This excerpt hax been adapred for LIFE from the fortheonting hook ** Khrushckey
Remembers.” 10 be published in the Unired States and Conada by Little, Brown
and Campany in December 197G. The book wau tranxiated und edired by Strobe
Taibort, and {1 corvies an introduction and commentary by Edward Crankxhaw.
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The 1960 U-2 incident, in which Amer-
ican pilot Francis Gary Powers was shot
down over Russia in a spy plane like the
one above, wrecked a Paris summit con-
ference. It also spoiled the “‘spirit of

20
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Dulles was snapping at Eisenhower’

Camp David™ established a year earlier
during Khrushchev's visit to President
Eisenhower (below). The U-2 affair
weakened Khrushchev's position at
home (see box, p. 48B), although his text

does not comment on that point. When
Soviet-commanded tanks confronted
U.S. troops (left) during the Berlin crisis
of 1961, Khrushchev claimed a victory,
but he did not get the U.S. out of Berlin,

CONTINUED

The Geneva meeting was not the first time | met Eisenhower.
1'd met him at the end of the war when he came to Moscow. I 1
had to compare the two American Presidents with whom | dealt
—Eisenhower and Kennedy—the comparison would not be in
favor of Eisenhower. Our people have told me that they consid-
ered him & mediocre military leader and & weak President. He was
a good man, but he wasn't very tough. There was something soft
about his character.

Qur conversations with the American delegation were generally
constructive and useful for both parties, although the United States
refused 1o make even the most reasonable concessions because [Sec-
retary of State] John Foster D\rllt:s was still slive. It was he who de-
termined foreign policy, not President Eisenhower. | watched Dul-
les making notes with a pencil, lolding them up and sliding them
under Eisenhower’s hand. Eisenhower would then pick up these
sheets of paper and read them before meking & decision. He fol-
lowed this routine conscientiously, like & dutiful schoolboy taking
his lead from the teacher. It was difficult for us to imagine how a
chief of state could allow himsell to lose face like that in front of
delegations from other countries.

We had made a point of including our Defense Minister, Mar-
shal [Georgi] Zhukov, in our delegation. Zhukov had been a friend
of Eisenhower's during the war. We hoped that Eisenhower and
Zhukov might have a chance to talk alone together. But that vi-
cious cur Dulles was always prowling around Eisenhower, snap-
ping &t him if he got out of line. Eisenhower did give Zhukov a
spinning reel und sent personal greetings to Zhukov's wife and
daughter; but other than such pleasantries, nothing came of Zhu-
kov's conversations with Eisenhower.

Eisenhower suggesied that after each plenary session we meet
for refreshments, His idea was that if there had been any hard feel-
ings aroused, we could wash them away with martinis.

The atmosphere of our conversations with [Sir Anthony] Eden
was certainly warm. Naturally he was following the same general
line as the Americans, but he seemed to be mare flexible. During
dinner one evening Eden asked us, “What would you say if you
were invited to make an official visit to Great Britain?” We said
we would accept such an invitation with pleasure. [Eden had suc-
ceeded Churchill as Prime Minister in April 1955.]

Ultimately we prepared a joint stalement setiing forth the po-
sition of the four delegations. The wording was the result of var-
ious compromises which allowed all of us 1o sign

The Geneva meeting was 8 crucial test for us: would we be able to
represent our country competently? Would we be able to keep the
other side from intimidating us? All things considered, | would say
we passed. We returned to Moscow knowing that we hadn’t
achieved any conerete resufts. But we were encouraged, realizing
now thatour probable enemies feared us as much as we feared them.

Vietnam

Khrushehev does nat date his first meeting with Ho Chi Minh, but it
must have 1aken place after open warfare broke owt in 1946 between
the Vietminh, as the Vietnamese Commmnists were then known, and
the French.

Ho Chi Minh really was one of Communism's “‘saints.” |
first met him while Stalin was still alive. He had flown to
Moscow directly from the jungles of Vietnam. During our
conversation, Ho kept watching Sulin intently with his un-
usual eyes, shining with a special kind ol sincerity and purity.
Once he reached into his briefcase and took out a copy of
8 Soviet magazine and asked Stalin to autograph il. Stalin
CONTINUED
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‘I don’t think China will release Vietnam

Khrushchev was proud of his prowess watches the trophies of a bear hunt being

with a gun and liked to hunt when- cut up in Romania, the satellite country
ever possible. Above, he relaxes in the which in the post-Khrushchev era has
woods of Usovo near Moscaw, Below, had the greatest success following a

during his last year of power (1964), he foreign policy independent of Moscow,
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Another Nikits Sergeyevich, the son of
Khrushchev's son Sergei. enjoys a pool
swim at Pitsunda, on the Black Sea, with
his proud grandfather {above). In this
1963 picture, a rare private glimpse of
Khrushehev relaxing, little Nikita's face
shows u decided family resemblance,

A genial family man, Premier Khru-
shchev posed in the early 1960s in front
of u house at Usovo used for foreign
guests, Khrushchey stands between his
daughter Helen and son Sergei, The oth-
ers, left to right: daughters Galina and
Rada; Mrs. Khrushchey (Nina Petroy-
ns); Rada's husband Aleksei Adzhubei,
a career journalist who from 1959 to
1964 was the chiel editor of fzvestic.

FONTINUED
gave Ho his autograph but shortly afterwards had the magazine
stolen back because he was worried about how Ho might use it
Before the Geneva Conference [the carlier meeting, in 1954, when
Vietnam was partitioned] there was & preparatory meeting in Mos-
cow, China was represented by Chou En-lai and Vietnam by Ho
Chi Minh and Prime Minister Pham Van Dong. The situation was
very grave. The resistance movement in Vietnam was on the brink
of collapse. Hanoi was securcly in the hands of the French.
After one of these sessions in Catherine Hall at the Kremlin,
Chou En-lai buttonholed me and said, **Cemrade Ho Chi Minh has

* told me that the situation in Vietram is hopeless and thet if we don’t

attain a cease-fire soon, the Vietnamese won't be able to hold out
against the French. They want China to be ready to move troops
into Vietnum as we did in North Korea. We simply can't. We've al-
ready lost too many men in Korea—that war cost us dearly, We're
in no condition to get involved in-another war at this time.”

1 said, *“The Vietnamese are putting up a good fight. The French
ure taking heavy losses. There's no reasan why you should tell Ho
Chi Minh that you will refuse to help him il his troops retreat to
yaur border. Why don't you just tell him a white lie? Let the Viet-
namese believe that you'll help them if necessary, and this will be
& source of inspiration for the Vietnamese to resist the French.”
Chou En-lal agreed

Then & miracle happened. When the delegations arrived in Ge-
neva, the Vietnamese won a great victory and captured the for-
tress of Dienbienphu.

At the first session of the conference Mendés-France [French
Premier Pierre Mendés-France] proposed to restrict the northern
reach of the French forces to the 1 7th parallel, When we were in-
formed of this news from Geneva, we gasped with surprise and
pleasure. We hadn't expected anything like this, The 17th parallel
was the absolute maximum we would have claimed ourselves. We
instructed our representatives to demand that the demarcation line
be maved farther south to the 15th parallel, but only for the sake
of appearing to drive a hard bargain, After haggling for a short
{ime, we accepted Mendés-France's offer, and the treaty was
signed. We had succeeded in consolidating the gains of the Viel-
namese Communists.

Al would have been well if evervone had adhered to the com-
mitments of the Geneva accords. But then that sinister man Dul-
les and the United States stepped in and imposed & long, bloody
war on the Vietnamese people, a war which is still going on toduy.

When the rupture between the Parties of the Soviet Union and
China came out into the open, China began to Jead the Vietnam-
ese Party around by a halter, We have been unsparing in our ef-
forts 1o assist Yietnam, and the hostility of the pro-Chinese el-
ements in Vietnam has been a bitter pill to swallow. Why am |
bringing this up now? Becausc it relates to what we can expect
now that Ho Chi Minh is dead.

According to what | read in the press, it appears that all is going
smoathly in Soviet-Vietnamese relations. But certain information
that has reached me indicates that the Vietnumese are showing un-
warranted restraint toward the Soviet government and Party. |
would like to believe that Vietnam really does desire good rels-
tions with the Soviet Union, but | don’t think China will relcase
Vietnam from its paws. With the death of Ho Chi Minh, the in-
fectious growth of pro-Chinese influence will be able to spread
more virulently. If that happens it will be a great pity, and it will
be a poor memorial to Comrade Ho Chi Minh.

China
The friction between Moscow and Peking began to build in the mid-
dle 19505, although the signs were not yer evident to the outer warld.

A few years after | retired, the story started circulating that | was
the one who staried the quarrel between the U.S.5.R. and Chira.

| won't even bother to refute this slander.
CONTINUED



‘I had run out of patience with Mao’

After the split with China, Khrushchev rez- Visiting Yugoslavia in 1963, Khrushchev
ularly hosted Communist chiefs like Po- seemed reconciled to the determination of Qutwardly friendly, Khrushchev visited
land's Gomulka, whose support he needed. Marshal Tito (above) to go his own way. Mao (below) in Peking in 1958. In back-

ground: Liu Shaoc-chi and Chou En-lai
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CONTINUED

Ever since | first met Mao I've known that Mao would never be
able to reconcile himsell to any other Communist Party being in
any way superior (o his own. If Stalin had lived a little longer, our
conflict with China would have come into the apen earlier. Stalin
was always fairly critical toward Mao Tse-tung. Stalin used to'say
that Mao was a *‘margarine Marxist.”

When Mao's victorious revolutionary army was approaching
Shanghai [in 1949, Stalin asked Mao, “Why didn’t you take
Shanghai?™"

“There's a population of six million there,” answered Mao. "I
we take the city. then we'll have to feed all those people.” <

Now, | ask you, is that 1 Marxist talking? Mao didn't want to
take respornsibility for the welfare of the workers. But the fact re-
mains that Maa, relving on the peasants and ignoring the working
class, achieved victory. It was certainly a new twist to Marxist phi-
losophy. Mao Tse-tung is & petty bourgeois whose interests are
#lien, and have been alien all along, to those of the working class.

One doy we were sitting around at Stalin's, trying to figure out
some way to meet the demands of our rubber industry without hav-
ing to buy crude rubber from the capitalists. | suggested getting
Mao to let us set up & rubber plantation in exchange for credit
loans and technical assistance. The Chinese replied that they would
let us use the island of Hainan. It turned out that the area we were
given on Hainan was too small for n decent rubber plantation,
and the idea was dropped.

Then all of n sudden Stalin took a liking to canned pineapple.
He dictated a message to Malenkov: **Get & message off to the Chi-
nese that 1'd like them to give us an area where we can build a pine-
apple cannery.”

1 said, “*Comrade Stalin, the Communists have just recently come
to power in China. There are already too many foreign fuctories
there. This is sure to offend Mao Tse-tung."”

Stalin snapped at me angrily, and 1 said nothing more. A day
or two later we received the Chinese reply. Mao Tse-tung said,
“'We aceept your proposal. IT you are interested in canned pine-
upples, then give us a credit loan and we will build the cannery our-
selves. We will then pay back your loan with the produse.”

Stalin cursed and fumed.

In my time we took great care never to offend China until the Chi-
nese nctually started to crucify us. And when they did start to cru-
cify us—well, 1'm no Jesus Christ, and | didn’t have to turn the
other cheek.

1 remember when | came back from China in 1954 | told my
comrades, ““Conflict with China is inevitable.,” During my visit
to Peking, Mzo and 1 used 1o lie around a swimming pool, chat-
ting like the best of friends, But it was all too sickeningly sweet.
The atmosphere was nauseating. | was never exactly sure that |
understood what Mao meant. 1 thought at the time that it must
have been because of some special traits in the Chinese charac-
ter and the Chinese way of thinking.

Mao once asked me, ““What do you think of our slogan, ‘Leta
Hundred Flowers Bloom'”" | answered, **We simply can’t figure
out what this means. There are all kinds of Aowers—beautiful
flowers, nauseating flowers and even lethal flowers.™ Now it's
clear that the slogan was i ded as & provocation 10
people to express themselves so that any flowers whose blossom
had the wrong color or scent could be cut down and trampled in-
to the dirt.

Then there wus Mao's other famous slogan: **Imperialism 1s &
Paper Tiger."” 1 found it perfectly incredible that Mao could dis-
miss American imperialism asa paper tiger when in fact it is s dan-
gerous predator. Mae and | were lying next to the pool in our
bathing trunks, discussing the problems of war and peace. He said
to me, “If we compare the military might of the capitalist world
with that of the Socialist world, you'll see thut we have the ad-
vantage. Think of how many divisions China, the U.5.5.R. and
the other Socialist countries could raise.”

| said, “*Comrade Mao Tse-tung, that thinking is out of date
You can no longer calcutate the alignment of forces on the basis
of who has the most men. With the stomic bomb, the more troops
on a side, the more bomb fodder.™

“Listen, Comrade Khrushchev. All you have to do is provoke
the Americans into military action, snd 1'll give you as many di-
visions as you need to crush them—a hundred, two hundred, one
thousand." 1 tried to expiain that one or two missiles could turn
all the divisions in Chinz to dust. But he wouldn't even listen and
obviously regarded me as a coward.

Clearly there was basic disagreement. But our split with China
went even deeper, The Chinese understood the implications for
themselves of the 20th Party Congress's repudiation of personality
cuits, autocratic rule and all other antidemocratic, anti-Party forms
of life. Stalin was condemned at the Congress for having had hun-
dreds of thousands of people shot and for his abuse of power.
Mao Tse-tung was following in Stalin's footsteps.

In 1958, when we pul our long-range submarines into service,
we needed @ radio station in China to keep in contact. The Chi-
nese answer was no. | said to my comrades, “'IU's Mao's turn to
make a state visit here. But given the present situation, maybe
we'd better go talk to him so we can find out where we stand.”

This was our last trip 10 Ching, It was in 1959, We discussed the
radio station. | said [to Mao), **We will give you the money to
build the station. It doesn't matter to whom the station belongs,
a5 long as we can use it to keep in contact with our submarines,
Couldn’t we come to some 50 that our sut might
have a base in your country for refueling, repairs, shore leaves and
so on™"

“*For the last time, no. | don’t want to hear anything about it.”

“The countries of the Atlantic Pact have no trouble cooper-
ating and supplying each other, and here we are—unable to reach
&n agreement on so simple & matter as this!™

“Not"

| made one last attempt to be reasonable: “If you want, you
can use Murmansk as a port for your submarines.”

“‘No! We don't want anything to do with Murmansk, and we
don’t want you here. We've had the British and other foreigners
on our territory for years now, and we're not ever going to let any-
one use our land for their own purposes again.”

1t°s. always difficult to know what the Chinese are really think-
ing. It's difficult to figure out whether China is really for or against
peaceful coexistence, There is one thing | know for sure about
Mao, He's a nationalist, and when | knew him he was bursting
with an impatient desire to rule the worid, He asked me, ““How
many conguerors have invaded China?" He answered the ques-
tion himself: **China has been conquered many times, but the Chi-
nese have assimilated all of their conquerors.”

He was setting his sights on the future. “Think about it,” he
said, “*You have 200 million people, [and] we have 700 million.”

Later the Chinese press started to claim that Viadivostok was
on Chinese territory, that the Russians had stolen it from China.
We consented to negotiate about our borders, They sent their ver-
sion of how the map should read. We took one look at it and
threw it away in disgust.

If you read my report to the 22nd Party Congress [in 1961],
you'll see that | dedicated many of my remarks 1o the problems of
Chira, although I didn"t mention China by name. It was a1 the
22nd Congress that we rejected the main tenets of Mao's position.
1 had run out of patience with him.

| do subscribe to one of Mao’s "‘egalitarian” reforms. He was
right to remove epaulets from Chinese army uniforms. Who the
hell needs them? We won the civil war-and 1 didn’t have any ep-
aulets or stripes. Nowadays our military men are all dressed up
like canaries.

‘While Maa Tse-tung may have abused his power and misled his
Party, hes not a madman. He is very intelligent and cunning.

TEXT CONTINUED ON PAGE 47
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TEXT CONTINUED FROM PAGE 25

Only a few years ago people were predicting that Mao Tse-tung
would never win the power sirpggle which was going on. | said,
““Nonsense, of course Mao will win.”” And | was right, But the Chi-
nese don’t recognize any law except power and force. If you don't
obey, they tear your head off. They strangle vou in the middie of &
square in front of thousands of peaple. What sort of **politics™ is
thai? You can't even call it barbarism, I1's more than that.

Berlin

Khrushehev's aecount of the Berlin crisis, following the 1961 Vienna
meeting ar which Khrushehev sought to bully John F. Kennedy, is
sketehy, but {15 an interesting view of the canflict aver Germany as
sven from the other side of the Wall, The **vietary” Kbrushehey claims
was nal complete; the Aliies hacked down on the Berlin Wall, but
their troops remained in West Berlin, which was the central point of

the argument.

By this time President Kennedy was in the White House, Not long
before the events in Berlin came 1o & head. | had met Kennedy in
Vienna. He impressed me as a better statesman than Eisenhower.
Unlike Eisenhower, Kennedy had a precisely formulated opinion
on every subject. 1 joked with him that we had cast the deciding
ballot in his election to the presidency over that san of & bitch Rich-
ard Nixon. | explained that by waiting 10 release the U-2 pilot
Gary Powers until after the American election, we kept Nixon
from being able to claim that he could deal with the Russians; our
ploy made a difference of at least half & million votes, which gave
Kennedy the edge he needed.

| had met Kennedy before, during my visit to America. | re-
member liking his face, which often broke into & good-natured
smile, As for Nixon, | had been all too familiar with him in the
past. He had been a puppet of [Senator Joseph] McCarthy until
McCarthy's star began to fade, at which point Nixon turned on
him. So he was an unprincipled puppet, which is the most dan-
gerous kind. | was very glad Kennedy won the election, and | was
generally pleased with our meeting in Vienna. Even though we
came to no concrete agreement, | could tzll that he was interested
in finding a peaceful solution to world problems.

Nevertheless Kennedy reinforced the American garrison and ap-
pointed a general named [Lucius] Clay 1o take command of West-

Fidel Castro, Khrushchev says, was lurious at the decision 1o
pull Soviet missiles out of Cuba in 1962. But the two had made
up when Castro visited Lake Ritsa in the Caucasus in 1963,

ern forees in Berlin, We had picked up the gauntlet and were ready
for the duel,

[Marshal lvan] Konev reported that he had learned on what
day and a1 what hour the Western powers were going 1o begin
their actions ngainst us. They were preparing bulldozers to break
down our border installatians, followed by tanks and wave after
wiave of Jeeps with infantrymen. We concentrated our own in-
fantry units in side streets near the checkpoints along the border,
We also brought in our tanks at night and stationed them nearby.

Then Konev reported that the American bulldozers, tanks and
Jeeps were heading in the direction of our checkpoints, Our men
were waiting calmly and did not mave, Then all at ance our tanks
ralled out of the side streets and moved forward 1o meet the Amer-
ican tanks.

The American hulldozers and tanks came to a halt. The Jeeps
drove past them and we opened the gates into East Berlin and Jet

the Jeeps through. After they'd gone a short distance beyond the
checkpoint, the Americans saw our infantry troops in the side
streets and our tanks coming toward them. They immediately
turned their Jeeps around und sped buck into West Berlin,

The tanks and troops of both sides spent the night lined up facing
each other across the border. It was late October and chilly. It cer-
tainly must have been invigorating for our tank operators to sit up
all night in cald metal boxes. The next morning Marshal Konev re-
ported to us that both the American tank crews and our own had
climbed out in turn to warm themselves, but that the barrels of

CONTINUED
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In a lecture from the So-
viet Mission balcony to
UN. newsmen in New York
City, Khrushchev in 1960
was a mix of toughness, cun-
ning and ebullient charm.
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CONTINUED
their cunnon remained trained on each other across the border.

I proposed that we turn our tanks around, pull them back from
the border and have them take their places in the side streets. We
should take the initiative ourselves and give the Americans an op-
portunity to pull back from the border once the threat of our tanks
had been removed. | said [ thought that the Americans would pull
back their tanks within 20 minutes after we hud removed ours.

Konev ordered our tanks 1o pull back. He reported that, just
as | had expected, it did take only 20 minutes for the Americans
to respond.

I think it was a great victory for us. By refusing to back dawn,
we guaranteed the G.D.R."s right to control its own [East Ger-
man] territory and its own borders. We had good reason to cal-
ebrate this moral and material victory.

Cuba

Khrushchev's account of the Cuban missile crisis in October 1962 is
perhaps the most open passage in this book, although the remorics at-
tritnited to Robert Kennedy are extremely unlikely. After the crisis
was over the world hod the strong impression thar Khrushehev had
backed down, and to some extent that was true. Yet Khrushchev
claims that he gor about what he wanted.

At the time Fidel Castro led his revolution to victory [in 1959] we
had no idea what political course he would follow. For a long
time we had no diplomatic refations with the new regime. How-
ever, our people who handled Latin American affairs did know
some of the Cuban leaders. They knew Raul Casiro in particular.
We knew that Raul was a good Communist, but it appeared that
he kept his true convictions hidden from his brother Fidel. Ché
Guevary was 2 Communist too, and 50 were some of the others
—or so we thought. We had nothing to go on but rumors.

We decided 1o send Mikoyan to America to establish unofficial
contacts with the leaders of the American business world. We want-
ed to find out what the prospects were for developing trade with
America. Anastas Ivanovich had been in the U.S, before the war
and still had some of his old contacts. While Mikovan was in the
U.S., Fide! invited him to visit Cuba. Mikoyan traveled around
Cuba, looked things over and talked with people.

Shortly after Mikoyan's visit we established diplomatic relations.
The Americans had cut off the Cubans’ supply of oil und it was ur-
gent that we organize an oil delivery to Cuba on & massive scale,
That was easier said than done. Our efforts put a heavy burden on
our own shipping system and forced us to order extra tanikers from
Italy. When ltaly agreed to sell us the tankers, it caused a sharp con-
flict between Italy and America. The lesson was that if a capitalist
country sees a chance (o make some extrd money, it couldn’t care
less about economic solidarity,

We sent a veteran diplomat to be our ambassader in Havana.
We also had [Aleksandr] Alekseyev there, a journalist who was
friendly with Fidel and even more so with Raul, It was lucky we
had Alekseyev there because our ambassador turned out to be un-
suited far service in a country just emerging from a revolution.
‘When the situation heated up and shooting started, he demanded
that the Cubans give him a special bodyguard, The Cuban leaders
were astonished and irritated. Here they were offering the enemies

of the fevolution far more enticing targets ind going dround with-

out any bodyguards at all themselves, and now this Communist
aristocrat of ours starts demanding some sort of special protec-
tion! So we reculled him and made Alekseyev ambassador in his
place. He turned out to be an excellent choice.

Castro was no longer sitting on the fence; he was beginning to be-
have like a full-fledged Communist, even though he still didn't call
himself one. All the while the Americans had been watching Castro
closely. At first they thought that the capitalist underpinnings of the
Cuban economy would remain intact. So by the time Castro an-
nounced that he was going to put Cuba on the road to Socialism,

the Americans had missed their chance to do anything by simply ex-
erting influence. That left only one alternative—invasion!

The Cubans asked us for arms. We gave them ianks, artillery,
antiaircraft guns and some fighter planes. The Cubans had always
fought with light arms only—automatic rifles, grenades and pis-
tols. But with the help of our instructors they learned quickly how
o use modern weapons.

We first heard on the radio [April 1961] that a counterrevo-
lutionary invasion had been launched against Cuba. We didn't
even know who the invaders were: were they Cuban conspirators
or Americans? However, we knew that the [Bay of Pigs] invasion
had to have the backing of the Americans.

Fidel's forces swung into action and made short work of the in-
vaders. The Americans had put oo much faith in the conspir-
ators. They had assumed that with American support behind the
invasion, the Cubans would topple Castro by themselves.

We welcomed Castro's victory, but we were certain that the
Americans would not let Cuba alone. Given the continued threat
of American interference in the Caribbean, what should our own
palicy be?

While | was on an official visit to Bulgarin one thought kept
hammering away at my brain: what will happen if we lose Cuba?
If Cuba fell, other Latin American countries would reject us,
claiming that for all our might the Soviet Union hadn’t been
able to do anything for Cuba except make empty protests to the
United Nations. We had to think up some way of confronting
America with more than words. But what exactly? The logical
answer was missiles.

It was during my visit to Bulgaria [in May 1962] that 1 had the
idea of installing missiles with nuclear warheads in Cuba without
letting the United States find out until it was too late to do any-
thing about them, | knew that first wed have to talk to Castro and
explain our strategy to get the agreement of the Cuban govern-
ment. My thinking went like this: if we installed the missiles se-
cretly and then if the United States discovered the missiles were
there, alter they were fixed and ready to strike, the Americans
would think twice before trying to liquidate our installations by mil-
itary means. [ knew that the United States could knock out some
of our installations, but not all of them. If a quarter or even a
tenth of our missiles survived—even if only one or two big ones
were left—we could still hit New York, and an awful lot of people
would be wiped out. [ don't know haw many; that’s a matter for
our scientists and military personnel to work out.

The main thing was that the installation of our missiles in Cuba
would restrain the United States [rom precipitous military action.
The Americans had surrounded our own country with military
bases and threatened us with nuclear weapons, and now they would
learn just what it feels like. It was high time America learned what
it feels like to have her own land and her own people threatened.
America has never had to fight a war on her own soil—at least not
in the past 50 years. America sent troops abroad to fight in two
World Wars—and made a fortune as a result. America has shed a
few drops of her own blood while making billions.

All these thoughts kept churning in my head the whole time |
was in Bulgaria. | didn't tell unyone what | was thinking. | kept
my mentalagony to myszlf, Butall the while the idea of putting mis-
siles in Cuba was ripening inside my mind. After | returned to Mos-
cow we convened a meeting and | said | had some thoughts to air
on the subject of Cuba. | presented my ides in the context of the
counterrevolutionary imvasion which Castro had just resisted. [
said that it would be foolish to expect the inevitable second in-
vasion to be as badly planned and executed as the first. | warned
that Fidel would be crushed and said we were the only ones who
could prevent such a disaster from occurring.

We decided to install intermediate-range missiles, launching
equipment and llyushin-28 bombers in Cuba. Soon after we began
shipping our missiles, the Americans became suspicious. It was

CONTINUED
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shaped island?

I want to make one thing

not long before they concluded on the basis of reconnaissance pho-
tographs that we were installing missiles. The Americans became
d, and we stepped up our shipments, We had delivered al-
most cverything by the time the crisis reached the boiling point.

There are people who argue with the benefit of hindsight that
antiaircraft missiles should have been installed before the ballistic
missiles to close the air space over Cuba. This doesn’t make sense,
How many surface-to-air missiles can you fit on & tiny sausage-

absolutely clear: when we put
our ballistic missiles in Cuba, we had no desire to start a war.
Our principal aim was to deter America from starting a war. Any
idiot could have started n war between America and Cuba. Cuba

was 11,000 kilometers away from us, Only a fool would think that
we wanted to invade the American continent from Cuba. We want-
ed to keep the Americans from invading Cuba, and we wanted to
make them think twice by confronting them with our missiles. This
goal we achieved—but not without undergoing a period of per-
ilous tension.

One day in October President Kennedy came out with a state-
ment warning that the United States would take whatever measures

Were necessary to remove what he called the “threat” of Russian

missiles in Cuba, The Americans began to make a belligerent show
of strength, surrounding the island with their navy, Things started
churning. The Americans were trying to frighten us, but they were
110 less scared than we were of atomic war, We had installed enough

CONTINUED

A 1969 conversation with Khrushchev:
the beginning of his fall from power

byDr.A.lloGoheeHnr“y

A Workd-respected internist, Dr. Harvey is Director
aof the Depariment of Medicine at the Johns Hopkins
Hospital in Boltimore. A year ago he and his wife
Elizabeth spent a week in the Savier Union seving, in
medical cansuitation, a member of the Khrushchey
Jamily, They had a rare private day with the former
Premier at his dacha 15 miley sauthwest of Mescaw.
In the course of the day's conversations Khrushchev
offered an fnsight into the circumstances whick led to
his fall from power, o subject not dealt with in his
reminiscences,

Dr. Harvey hos arranged that the See for this report
be paid ta Johne Hopliny,

I guessed that they were o prominent family, but |
didn't know my patient's name until the night before
we left the United States. Then | was told to wear o
big red rose in my lapel so thst the Khrushchey fam-
ily could recognize my wife and me when we got off
the plane at Moscow's Sheremetevo Airport. My pa-
tient turned out 1o be a member of the Khrushchev
family, but not Nikita Khrushchey himseif. His son,
Sergei Khrushchey, came to the airport with two cars
and arranged our plans.

We toured Moscow for a day. Sergei said that
the next day, Sunday, we would visit the an coilec-
tion at the Yusupov estate 15 miles outside Mos-
cow, then leave our Intourist guide and spend the
rest of the day at the dacha with “‘my friend.” Dur-
ing our entire stay Sergei never teferred to Nikim

as his father, but always called him “my
friend.”

Sunday morning turned up with the first big snow-
fall of the year and the roads were slippery. The In-
tourist guide was upset. She wanted to turn back
and cancel the excursion, Cars were sliding around
on the road and | was afraid that we weren't ever
80ing 1o get there, But young Khrushchey just in-
sisted and made the driver press on, We slid down a
hill and just got by six cars all iumbled togethey on
the road,

We finally got to the old Yusupov estate, which
looked beautiful in the fresh snowfall. After a quick
tnurwauumdhyamourmdemdﬂmwm
snow-laden pines and hirches to the family dacha,
which is surrounded by a green wooden fence. There
were guards in plain clothes at the entrance, but they
didn’t delay Sergei’s car.

There's a little road through the birch trees that

leads up to the dacha, The house looks like an old Ver-
mnmnrN:lenmhin:mmmumma.ﬂuklndl
Fairly well-to-do person would have, It's painted green
with white trim and has a neat, well-constructed
Teeling.

Mr. Khrushchev and his wife Nina Petrovna came
:odudnomy«omum“mtm-ndmk
off our coats, | saw him smile. He was 75 then and [
Wals prepared to see him looking s little older and s lit-
tie more feeble, but he was quite vigorous and full
of beans.

The inside of the dacka is filled with all sorts of in-
teresting gifts he's gotten from all over the world, It
is simply but tastefully decormted. There were fab-
ulous ivory carvings, tapestries and crystal, the things
that are sent 1 a head of swate, The table was alrcady
m!‘ortunchmdmmefthufmﬂlymthm. in-
cluding the grandchildren, | immediately got the jm-
pression of strong family ties and great personal
warmth,

The table was set with heaping plates of salads,
bread, caviar, herring, wine and vodka. Mr, Khru-
dmhwmapmwlymuﬂo!:hemmmqmd
cucumbers, which he had grown in his own small
greenhouse next 1o the dacha, He kept explaining to
me how he grew the tomatoes, while Mrs. Khru-
shehev told us about the magnificent Siberian soup
sho had prepared, with raviolilike dumplings called
pilmeni.

At first we talked about Khrushchey's visit to the
United States, I told him | had been interested in his
ummhudwmheditanmlmilimmdthul
had met some of the people he had known, including

Mdhmml}:htdthudmlnminkm
nudy.lﬂﬁnkl(hnnhduvmudllln}andﬂm
he hadn't had a greater oppartunity to know the
young President. Khrushchey said, “When | first
met President Kennedy in Vienna it was clear that
he was a very intelligent, likable person. At that
time I felt he was politically inept, but that he was
learning fast.”

Then 1 asked Mr. Khrushche if he would be will-
ing 1o tell me what had heppened, what had caused
hlamddmch:ngelnstmua.hnjnhelnnuﬁwhh—
out a pause. He said 1hat his own idea always had
been 1o have our two countries five together peace-
fully and compete ccanomically, not militarily, He
said he lly deplared viol d that was why
huhndbaanthuﬂujzuimmdinm
moving Beria from power. And he said; *“Things were
going well until one event happened. From the time
Gary Powers was shot down in a U-2 over the Soviet
Union, I was no longer in full control."

I remember asking, **How did you feel when you
lost your status?"

He said unequivocally that his decision-making
powers were weakened after the U-2 crisis in the
spring of 1960 and that he was no longer calling the
shats. He explained that *“thase who felt America had
imperialistic intentions and that military strength was
the most important thing had the evidence they need-
ed, and when the U-2 incident occurred, [ no longer
had the ability to overcome that feeling.” He said
very simply and straightforwardly that after Gary

Nehru and Presidents Nixon and Eisenh >
“Would you mind if I asked some questions about
them™ 1 ventured. “Certainly not,” he said.

He described his encounter with then-Vice Pres-
Ident Nixon al the American trade fair exhibit in
Moszow in Nsﬂlndindiamdl-hllhulhoudnhhd
Botten the better of Nixon in the so-called kitchen
dobate. **How would You size up Nixon™ | asked.

His answer wes tmmedinrg: “"He's 4 typical middle-
class American businessman,

Mr. Khrushchey told me, “*Eisenhower was an ex-
tmnﬂyniamll&:dhﬁnmmud him,"
he said. “*Eisenh WES & very man
and he really hldl.sinm:daﬁmfwm. but T
nevu—coulduthnulormmludﬂmwhnlwu
mln;withﬁlmbawu,ulmsrmnlbuu;hl
were talking to John Foster Dulles.”

took me on a tour of the dacka
and his greenhouse, Histed:wmhnnnineplcnue
window looking out on the birch woods and there
mmummmmmmmmumm
mwmmmmmwmm.mmm
pmudn(ﬁcuemhmmdﬂumdmin.hdmil.
lbmnhnwhmtmum,mummh—h
flowers. He also told me aboui his simmer vegatable
nrdml.ndpnlnudmmhlhh:dplumdhhn—
ulfnnlmmndslmmdlhudackm
W-‘dbmthmmnuohh-dumdm]yuitm
dark did we say goodbye,
Iwudesﬂyhn;nuwd.lhawllmlnmmd
l!in:.-K.hm:hdmquou'\umMmmTV.
ﬂlemh:ppmchedpo{hwlwhnrhmdi-
rectly and in an earthy manner. He was exactly
ﬂmwiywmwhnhemnlkiqmlywnmhh
and

Of the three American Presidents, Khrushch

L He's that kind of man,

LAl
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‘Our ships
headed
through
the U.S.
blockade’
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missiles already to destroy New York, Chicago and the other in-
dustrial cities, not to mention a little village like Washington. I
don’t think America had ever faced such a real threat of destruc-
tion as at that momentL.

Meanwhile we went about our own business, We didn't let our-
selves be intimidated. Our ships headed straight through the Amer-
icen navy, but the Americans didn't try to stop our ships or even
check them. [After the U.S, proclaimed a naval blockade, some
Russian ships did idle at sea to await developments.] We kept in
mind that as long as the United States limited itsalf to threatening
gestures, we could afford to pretend to ignore the harassment. We
had the same rights as the Americans. Our conduct in the inter-
national arena was governed by the same rules and limits.

The Western press began to seethe with anger and alarm. Qur
people were fully informed of the dangerous situation, although
we took care not to cause panic by the way we presented the facts.
Seeking to take the heat off the situation somehow, I suggested to
the other members of the government: ''Comrades, let’s 2o to the
Bolshoi Theater this evening. Our own peaple as well as foreign
eyes will notice, and perhaps it will calm them down." We were try-
ing to disguise our own anxiety, which was intense,

Then the exchange of notes began. | dictated the messages
from our side. I spent one of the most dangerous nights at the
Council of Ministers office in the Kremlin. I slept on a couch,
and I kept my clothes on. [ was ready for alarming news to come
any moment.

President Kennedy issued an ultimatum, demanding that we re-
maove our missiles and bombers from Cuba. [ remember those days
vividly. I remember the exchange with President Kennedy espe-
cially well because I initisted it and was at the center of the
action on our end of the correspondence. | take complete re-
sponsibility for the fact that the President and I entered into dircct

comtact at the most crucial and dangerous stage of the crisis.

The climax came after five or six days when our ambassador to
Washington, Anatoli Dobrynin, reported that the President's
brather, Robert Kennedy, had come to see him on an unofficial
visit. Dobrynin’s report went something like this: *Robert Ken-
nedy looked exhausted, One could see from his eyes that he had
not slept for days. He himself said that he had not been home for
six days and nighs.

** *The President is in & grave situation,” he said, ‘and he does
not know how to get out of it. We are under pressure from our mil-
itary 1o use force against Cuba. Probably at this very moment the
President is sitting down to write 2 message to Chairman Khru-
shehev. We want to ask you to pass President Kenoedy's message
to Chairman Khrushchev through unofficial channels. President
Kennedy implores Chairman Khrushchev to take into consider-
ation the peculiarities of the American system. Even though the
President himself is very much against starting a war over Cuba,
an irreversible chain of events could ocour against his will. That is
why the President is appealing directly to Chairman Khrushchev
for his help in liquidating this conflict. If the situation continues
much longer, the President is not sure that the military will not
overthrow hith and seize power. The American army could get
out of control.”

1 hadn't overlooked this possibility. We knew that Kennedy was
a young President and that the security of the United States was in-
deed threatened. For some time we had felt there was a danger
that the President would lose control of his military, We could
sense from the tone of the message that tension in the United States
was indeed reaching a critical point. We wrote & reply to Kennedy
in which we said that we had installed the missiles with the goal of
defending Cuba and that we were not pursuing any aims except to
deter an invasion of Cubs and to guarantee that Cuba would be

CONTINUED
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CONTINUED
able to follow a course determined by its own people rather than
one dictated by some third party,

While we conducted this exchange through official channels, the
mare confidential letters were relayed to us through the President’s
brother. Once, when Robert Kennedy talked with Dobrynin, he
was almost crying, **1 haven't seen my children for days now,” he
said, “‘and the President lasn't seen his either. [ don't know how
much longer we can hold eut against our generals.”

We could see that we had to reorient our position swiftly. “Com-
rades,” | said, “'we have to look for a dignified way out of this
conflict. At the same time, of course, we must make sure that we
do not compromise Cuba.” We sent the Americans a note saying
we agreed to remove our missiles and bombers on condition that
the President give his assurance that there would be no invasion
of Cuba by the forces of the U.S. or anybody else. Finally Ken-
nedy gave in and agreed to make a statement giving us such an
assurance.

As soon as we announced publicly that we were ready to re-
move our missiles, the Americans became arrogant and insisted
on sending an inspection team to the island. We answered that
they'd have to get the Cuban government's permission. Then the
Chinese and American press started hooting about how Khru-
shchev had turned coward and backed down. T won't deny that we
were obliged to make some big concessions in the interests of peace.
We even consented to the inspection of our ships—but only from
the air; we never let the Americans set foot on our decks, We did
let them satisfy themselves that we were removing our missiles.

The situation was stabilizing. Almost immediately after the Pres-
ident and I had exchanged notes at the peak of the crisis, our re-
lations with the United States started to return to normal. Our
relntions with Cuba, on the other hand, took a sudden turn for the
warse. Castro even stopped receiving our ambassador. [t seemed
that by removing our missiles we had suffered a moral defeat in
the eyes of the Cubans. Our shares in Cuba, instead of going up,
went down.

We decided to send Mikoyan to Cuba. [ said, **He will discuss
the situation with the Cubans calmly.” Not everyone understands

Cuban crisis came to an end when Russians removed
their missiles. Fere U.S.S. Vesole, a destroyer, inspects
missiles shown by crew of Russian freighter Polzunoy.

what Mikoyan is saying when he talks, but he's a reasonable man.

The Americans had, on the whole, been open and candid with
us, especially Robert Kennedy, The Americans knew that if Rus-
sizn blood were shed in Cuba, American blood would surely be
shed in Germany, It had besn, to say the least, an interesting and
challenging situation. The two most powerful nations in the world
had been squared off, each with its finger on the button. But both
sides showed that if the desire to avoid war is strong enough, even
the most pressing dispute can be solved by compromise. And a com-
promise over Cuba was indeed found. The episode ended in 2 tri-
umph of common sense.

Il always remember the late President with deep respect be-
cause, in the final analysis, he showed himself to be sober-minded
and determined to avoid war. He didn't overestimate America's
might, and he didn't let himself become frightened, nor did he be-
come reckless. He left himself 2 way out from the crisis. He showed
real wisdom and statesmanship when he turned his back on right-
wing forces in the United States who were trying to goad him into
military action. It was a great victory for us, though, that we had
been able to extract from Kennedy a promise that neither Amer-
ica nor her allies would invade Cuba,

But Castro didn’t see it that way, He was angry, The Chinese
were buzzing in Castro's ear, **Just remember, you can’t trust the
imperialists to keep any promises they make!™

After consulting with Mikoyan on his return from Havana, | de-
cided to write a letter to Castro, candidly expressing my thoughts:
“The main point about the Caribbean crisis is that it has guar-
anteed the existence of a Socialist Cuba . . . for at least another
two years while Kennedy is in the White House. And we have
reason Lo believe that Kennedy will be elected for a second term,
To make it through six years in this day and age is no small
thing. And six years from now the balance of power in the world
will have probably shifted—and shifted in our favor, in favor of
Socialism!™

My letter to Castro concluded an episode of world history. in
which, bringing the world to the brink of atomic war, we won a So-
cialist Cuba. The Caribbean crisis was a triumph of Soviet foreign
palicy and a personal triumph in my own career as a statesman
and as o member of the collective leadership, We achieved, | would
say, 8 spectacular success without having to fire a single shot!

We can be gratified that the revolutionary government of Fidel
Castro still lives and grows. Cuba exists as an independent So-
cialist country, right in frent of the open jaws of predatory Amer-
ican imperialism. Other Latin American peoples arz beginning to
realize what steps they can take to liberate themselves from Amer-
ican imperialists and monopolists. Hopefully Cuba’s example will
continue 1o shine.

As for Kennedy, his death wss & great loss. He was gifted with
the ability to resolve international conflicts by negotiation, as the
whole world learned during the so-called Cuban crisis. Regard-
less of his youth, he was a real statesman. | believe that if Ken-
nedy had lived, relations between the Soviet Union and the Unit-
ed States would be much better than they are. Why do | say
that? Because Kennedy would never have let his coumtry get
bogged down in Vietnam.

Kennedy's successor, Lyndon Johnson, assured us that he would
keep Kennedy's promise not to invade Cuba. So far the Amer-
icans have not broken their word. If they ever do, we still have the
means to make good on our commitment to Castro and defend
Cuba.

1t's no small thing that we have lived to see the day when the So-
viet Union is considered, economically, the second most powerful

country in the world.
I think our foreign policy should be based in part on an old folk
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‘I live
with my
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else’

went to another village to visit friends or relatives, she would nev-
er go without 1aking a bundle of pastries—or, in our Kursk Prov-
ince, u dozen eggs—as a house present for her hosts. The policy of
giving “‘house presents” to other countries must be pursued in-
telligently so that our gencrosity will always repay us economi-
cally and politically.

There is a battle going on in the world: will the working class pre-
vail, or the bourgeoisie? We Communists believe that progress is
on our side and victory will inevitably be ours. Yet the capitalists
wot’t give an inch and swear 1o fight to the bitter end. How can
we talk of peaceful coexistence with capitalist ideology? Peaceful
coexistence among different systems of government is possible, but
peaceful coexistence among different ideologies is not.

Therefore 1 allowed mysell at one point to use the expression,
“*We will bury the enemies of the Revolution.™ 1 was referring, of
course, to America. Later | clarified what ] had meant: we, the So-
viet Union, weren't going to bury anyone; the working class of the
United States would bury its enemy, the bourgeois class of the Unit-
ed States.

Now that I'm living with my memories and little else, 1 think
back often 1o that period when in & creative surge forward we
rearmed our Soviet army. Now that it's the size of our nuclear
missile arsenal and not the size of our army that counts, 1 think
the army should be reduced to an absolute minimum. There's no
question in my mind that we have reached the stage where that's
possible.

We must not lower our guard. We must keep in mind the true
character of all imperialists, capitalists, monopolists and milita-
rists who are interested in making money out of the political ten-
sion between nations. We must be prepared to strike back against
our enemy, but we must also ask, '“Where is the end 1o this spi-
raling competition”"

1 remember a conversation | once had with President Eisen-
hower at his “*dacha” at Camp David [in 1959]. He asked, ““Tell
me, Mr. Khrushchev, how do you decide the question of funds for
military expenses?” Before 1 had a chance to say anything he said,
“*Perhaps first 1 should tell you how it is with us.”

“Well, how is it with you?"

He smiled and I smiled back. | had a feeling what he was going
to say. ““It’s like this. My military leaders say, ‘Mr. President, we
need such and such a sum for such and such a program.’ | say,
‘Sorry, we don't have the funds,” They say, ‘We have reliable in-
formation that the Soviet Union has already allocated funds for
their own such program.’ So | give in. That's how they wring mon-
ey out of me. Now tell me, how is it with youT”

““It’s just the same, Some people say, ‘Comrade Khrushchev,
look at this! The Americans are developing such and such u sys-
tem.” | tell them there's no money. So we discuss it some more,
and | end up by giving them the money they ask for.”

“Yes," he said, “‘that’s what | thovght. You know, we really
should come to some sort of an agreement in order to stop this
fvalry

“I'd like to do that.”

But we couldn't agree then, and we can't agree now, [ dan’t
know. Maybe it's impossible for us to agree. | keep coming back
to my own feeling that we should go shead and sharply reduce our
own expenditures, unilaterally. If our enemy wants to go ahead in-
flating his military budget, then he's sure to lower the living stan-
dards of his own people.

I think Stalin's cultural policies were cruel and senseless. You can't
regulate the development of literature, art and culture with a stick
or by barking orders, You can't lay down a furrow and then har-
ness all your artists to make sure they don't deviate from the straight
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and narrow. If you try to control your artists (oo tightly, there will
KHRUSHCHEV be no clashing of opinions, consequently no criticism, and con-
REMEMBERS  scquently no truth. There will be just a gloomy stereotype, boring
and useless.

Naturally, under the dictatorship of the waorking class, there can
be no such thing as absolute freedom. As for other countries which
brag about all their freedoms, they have no such thing as absolute
freedom either. In order 1o feel moral constraint, a man must have
a highly refined conception of what human freedom is all about.
Most people still measure freedom in terms of how much meat,
!We how many potatoes, or what kind of boots they can get for one

ruble.

should We Communists believe that capitalism is a hell in which la-

boring people are condemned to slavery. We are building Social-

open our ism, To use the language of the Bible, our way of life is paradise

for mankind, It's not paradise in the sense that the horn of plenty

borders’ is overflowing. We don't have that kind of paradise—not yet. |
don’t know if we ever will. But relative to the capitalist world, our
life is & great accomplishment.

So why should we build a good life and then keep our borders
bolted with seven locks? Sametimes our own citizens scoff, ““So
you're driving us into paradise with a club, eh?" 1 think it's time
10 show the world that our people are free; they work willingly;
and they are building Socialism because of their convictions, not be-
cause they have no choice.

1 once asked Tito, **Tell me, how do you check all the Western
tourists who enter Yugoslavia by car?’ In the L.S.S.R. we have a
huge bureaucratic apparatus that puts many roadblocks in a tour-

15t's way,

Tito laughed and said, **We've solved the problem very simply.
There are all kinds of ways that undesirable tourists, spies and so
forth, can get into our country. Border checks are no guarantee.
Therefore border guards in our country subject tourists to a min-
imum of formal checks. There’s usually no identity check at all.
It's just as free for citizens of Yugoslavia going abroad. They sim-

In retirement, Khrushchev, & man who could be
many things at many times, grins widely after
making & rare visit to Moscow to cast his vote.
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ply tell the border guard, ‘I'm leaving to earn enough money to
buy & car,’ and they're let right through.”

1 was intrigued by this approach. | have no doubt that it's prac-
tically feasible for us to open our borders. Is it possible that ourcon-
fidence and trust in individuals will ever be betrayed? Of course it
is. So let the garbage of our society float to the surface, and let the
waves carry it far from our shores. We've got to stop looking for a
defector in everyone. We've got ta stop designing our border for
the sake of keeping the dregs and scum inside our country. We
must start thinking about the people who don't deserve to be called
scum. We've got 1o give them a chance to find out for themselves
what the worid is like.

When ] found out that Svetlanka [Stalin's daughter] had gone
to bury her husband in his homeland and that she wouldn't re-
turn, | wanted to believe it was just the latest slanderous hoax con-
cacted by bourgeois journalists. Then I received indisputable con-
firmation. | can’t understand how she decided to take this step.
She abandoned her Homeland and her children. She gave the
enemies of the Soviet way of life something to gossip about, and
she allowed her name, the name of Stalin's daughter, to be ex-
ploited by the enemies of Socialism. Nevertheless 1 still feel very
sorry for her.

For her to run away to the West can’t be justified. But there’s an-
other side to the whole case. Svetlanka was dealt with stupidly, Ap-
parently after her husband's funeral she went to our embassy in
New Delhi. [Ivan] Benediktov was our ambassador there, He'sa
very straitlaced person, Svetlanka said she wanted to stay in India
for a few months, but Benediktov advised her to return imme-
diately to the Soviet Union. Svetlanka was particularly familiar
with our habits in this regard. She knew it meant she wasn't trust-
ed. This was an offensive, humiliating tactic which would throw
even a stable person off balance, and Svetlanka wasn't a stable per-
son. She broke down and turned to foreign powers for help.

What do 1 think should have been done? When Svetlanka came
to the embassy and said that she had to stay in India for two or three
months, they should have told her, **Why only three months? Geta
visa for a year or two or even three years. Then, whenever you're
ready, you can go back to the Soviet Union.” They should have
showed her that she was trusted. And what il we had acted the way
we should have and Svetlanka still hadn't returned home? Well, that
would have been too bad, but no worse than what happened.

The very thought of Svetlanka brings tears to my eyes. I felt like
a parent toward her. | felt a certain human pity for her as 1 would
fesl for an arphan. As a little girl she would be running around the
house whenever we came by. Stalin always called her ‘‘the
hostess,” and we started calling her *‘the hostess” too. She was
always dressed smartly in a little Ukrainian skirt and an embroi-
dered blouse. She looked very much like ber mother with her au-
burn hair and tiny freckles. ““The hostess™ grew up before our eyes.

Things were never easy for her Stalin never showed any pa-
rental tenderness. His was the tenderness of a cat for a mouse, Sta-
lin broke the heart first of a child, then of a young girl, then of &
mother, It all resulted in Svetlanka's gradual psychic breakdown.
There's samething odd and even sick about her book. I've heard ex-
cerpts [rom it over the radio. For instunce she writes that she used
10 cross berself and that she was very religious. How could a So-
viet citizen who grow up in our socicty write this kind of stuff?

I still think that everyihing has not yet been lost. Her thoughts
about returning to her children might grow stronger. She should
be given another chance. She should know that if she wants to
come back she's welcome, and that the weakness she showed when
she left and went to America won't be held against her,

There you have it. That's the substance of my viewpoint. My
time has come and gone. There's nothing | can do now but share
my experience with anyone who cares to listen, =




